Rapid #: -5119965

CALL #:
LOCATION:

TYPE:

JOURNAL TITLE:
USER JOURNAL
TITLE:

FWA CATALOG
TITLE:

ARTICLE TITLE:
ARTICLE AUTHOR:
VOLUME:

ISSUE:

MONTH:

YEAR:

PAGES:

ISSN:

OCLC #:

CROSS REFERENCE
1D:

VERIFIED:

BORROWER:

PATRON:
PATRON ID:
PATRON ADDRESS:
PATRON PHONE:
PATRON FAX:
PATRON E-MAIL:
PATRON DEPT:
PATRON STATUS:
PATRON NOTES:

Odyssey
IP: 140.233.2.27 /MDY

Microfilm 426

FWA :: Pace Library :: UWF Library Microforms -
2nd Floor

Article CC:CCL

<The >New England social studies bulietin

The New England social studies bulletin
The New England social studies bulletin.

OLD NUMBER FOUR: YESTERDAY AND TODAY.
Squires, James Duane,

16

2

January 1

1959

11-14

0028-4912

2568868
[TN:349696][ODYSSEY:140.233.2.27/MDY]

MDY :: Davis Family Library

RAPID..

This material may be protected by copyright law (Title 17 U.S. Code)
System Date/Time: 1/26/2012 2:52:04 PM MST




Library Pace Library at Site FWA Lending (Less than 24 hours) Page- 1 of 1

Odyssey
T I
Status Rapid Code Branch Name Start Date
New MDY Davis Family Library 1/24/2012 7:45:09 PM
Pending FWA Pace Library 1/24/2012 7:45:30 PM
Batch Printed FWA Pace Library 1/24/2012 7:49:13 PM
CALL #: Microfilm 426
LOCATION: FWA :: Pace Library :: UWF Library Microforms
- 2nd Floor
TYPE: Article CC:CCL
JOURNAL TITLE: <The >New England socia! studies bulletin

The New England social studies bulletin
The New England social studies bulletin.
OLD NUMBER FOUR: YESTERDAY AND TODAY.

USER JOURNAL TITLE:
FWA CATALOG TITLE:
ARTICLE TITLE:

ARTICLE AUTHOR:

Squires, James Duane,

VOLUME: 16

ISSUE: 2

MONTH: January 1

YEAR: 1859

PAGES: 11-14

ISSN: 0028-4912

OCLC #: 2568868

CROSS REFERENCE [TN:345696)[ODYSSEY:140.233.2.27/MDY)
1D:

VERIFIED:

BORROWER: MDY :: Davis Family Library
PATRON:

PATRON 1D:

PATRON ADDRESS:
PATRON PHONE:
PATRON FAX:
PATRON E-MAIL:
PATRON DEPT:
PATRON STATUS:
PATRON NOTES:

http://rapidill.org/IlI/ViewQueue?ViewType=AgingUnder24HrsOldByBranch&id=341 1/25/2012



Old Number Four: ZYa&tﬁ(rday and Today
by James Duane Squires®

In an artcle in the New York Times for Sunday, July 27, 1958, Joseph L.
Wheeler describes how “amateur historian-archaeologists” in Vermont are now
working in charting the course of four one-time colonial or Revolutionary high-
ways. One of these, he points out, is the Crown Point Road, which ran from
the Connecticur River near Old Number Four to Chimney Point, Vermont, ad-
jacent to the Crown Point Fort. Because of plans now under way to restore Old
Number Four, this particular colonial highway is of special interest to us mday :
it is of this fort and of this highway that I write in this essay.

In the first half of the eighteenth century, during the 'lull mwwn Queen
Anne’s War (1710-1713) and King George's War ( 1744-1748), the colony
of Massachusetts determined.to build four frontier forts to guard the western
part of the Bay Colony from Indian forays out of Canada. There were located in
the modern New Hampshire towns of Chesterfield, Westmoreland, Walpole,
and Charlestown, but were then called by the serial number No. One, No. Two,
No. Three, and No. Four. Number Four was at present-day Charlestown, and
was the final jumping-off point for the wilderness lying between the colonies in
New England and the French settdements in Canada. In 1740, by royal decree
these four forts were transferred to the jurisdiction of New Hampshire. In that
year King George 11 made the present northern boundary of Massachuseuts the
definitive line betrween the two colonies. ;

Old Fort Number Four was built close to the Connecricur River and covered
an area of three-quarters of an acre on a site on the main street of the present
village. Archaelogical excavations in 1957 definitely established the site of the
old fortification, and broughe to light a number of relics of the eighteenth cen-
tury. It was composed of thirteen houses joined together to make a quadrangle.
As a further protection on three sides—the weser, north, and east—a stockade
was built. This was made of logs a foot in diameter and about twelve feer high
above ground This was the fort which under Captain Phineas Stevens with-
stood an attack of several hundred French and Indians in April, 1747. This was
the base which was a key point in military operations through modern Vermont
during the French and Indian War, 1754-1763. v

In the early campaigns of that war the normal route for New England troops
going to the areas around Lake George and Lake Champlain was across Massa-
chusetts, over the Berkshire Hills to Albany, and thence north to Fort Edward
and the fighting zone. For Massachusetts .soldiers this meant a long tramp

* Head of the Socisl Swudies Department, Colby Junior College. This article appeared
originally in the January, 1959, issue of the Vermont Historical Society’s publication,
News and Notes, and is reprinted here with the permission x:}f the society and the author,
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around two sides of a twriangle. New Huainpshire regiments usually went 10 Oid
Number Four, thence down the river to Massachusetts, and then over the hills

10 the west. This meant marching or boating along three sides of a quadrilateral.

However necessary this might have been in the early years of the war, after the
French had lost Fort Ticonderoga, and Crown Point, a more direct road from
New Hampshire 1o Crown Point was obviously desirable. .

On July 27, 1759, the fleur-de-lis flag was pulled down at Ticonderoga, and
the Union Jack went up. A few days larer the same situation came about at
Crown Poinr. General Amberst, the British commander, thereafrer determined
to begin construction of a military road from his new bastion at Crown Point
to the Connecticut River opposite Old Number Four, some eighty-seven miles
away. The preliminary orders were issued to Captain John Stark of Rogers
Rangers on August 8. Stark promptly set out to make a survey across modern
Vermont. In the great central wilderness of the Green Mounmins he and his
men found not even a pathway or a blazed trail. Stark reported his findings to
Amberst on September 9. The general approved the recommended route and on

. October 26 sent out Major Zadok Hawks and Captain Stark with 250 men and

“proper Tools” to begin construction from the western end. ,

The two officers and their axmen started at Chimney Point and laid out the
road through Addison, Bridport, and Shoreham in a southeasterly direction. In
Shoreham the road changed its direction to east by south. Crossing portions of
Orwell, Whiting, and Sudbury, it came out on Otter Creek in the northwestern
part of Brandon. From thence it went to the village of Fowler in Pictsford.
From Pittsford it turned to the southeast through Rutland and into Clarendon.
The Green Mountains wete approached near the village of East Clarendon. The
road climbed steeply to Shrewsbury and thence to Mount Holly. From this re-
gion the road turned toward Pacch Pond and Lake Amherst. It is, of course,
obvious that not-all this could possibly have been finished in the sutumn of
1759. The roadmakers were low in provisions and in morale, and were paid off
at Old Number Four on November 16. Probably the first few miles only were
at all adequately done, the rest being merely roughed out and blazed.

In the spring of 1760 Colonel John Goffe of the New Hampshire militia with
800 men was assigned the task of completing the road from the eastern end.

By the middle of June most of the regiment had assembled ar Old Number

Four. The men, their animals, and materials crossed the Connecticut two miles
above the fort at Wentworth’s Ferry. Here they built a blockhouse for pro-
tection and storage of equipment. The road, beginning at this blockhouse on
the western bank of the river, ran for about eleven miles northwesterly through
Springfield and Weathersfield. From that town it crossed into Cavendish, keep-
ing to the hills away from the Black River. At "Twenty-Mile Camp” in Caven-

ish, Colonel Goffe set up his headquarters for the final section of the road work.
Beyond Cavendish the new construction went through Ludlow and into Ply-

"m@m In that town it descended toward Echo Lake and thence went to Lake
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Amherst. Here the builders reached the end of construction by the working -
party of 1759. No Indians had been seen during the course of the work, but
(Zﬁimei Goffe was always alert. On July 28, men, wagons, and cattle began
gasamg over the new road; and on July 31 che advance contingents of these =
reached Crowa Point. The highway was now open, and for the first time in
colonial history there was a direct route from New Hampshire across modern
Vermont. Old Number Four was the anchor point on the east, and Crown Point
the terminus on the west.

Seventeen years later Old Number Four was again prominent in military af-
fairs. This time it was the rendezvous for General John Stark and his New
Hampshire wroops marching to Bennington. Stark and his men left the Fore on
August 3, and moved by the old road for part of their way across Vermont. On
August 7 the force reached Peru, and on August 8 the general and his 1,000
men camped in Manchester. Throughout this crossing all supplies, reinforce-
ments, and equipment were forwarded to Stark fmm his operational base ar
Old Number Four. '

These are some of the reasons why modern Americans are interested in the
restoration of this important colonial and Revolutionary Fort. About ten years
ago certain persons in Charlestown, New Hampshire, incorporated the Old
Number Four Associates. Since then much has been done. A competent archi-
tect has been secured, and careful plans for the restoration of the Forf have
been made. A new site has been secured, the old one now being in the heart of
the present village. But the new site is in every way comparable to the original
location, and is even closer to Wenrtworth's Ferry than was the fort two hundred
years ago. Many groups in New Hampshire have endorsed the restoration ef-
fort: the State Planning and Development Commission, the Daughters of the
American Revolution, the Sons of the American Revolution, the New Hamp-
shire Federation of Women's Clubs, the Society of Colonial Wars, the Amer-
ican Legion, the Veterans of megxx Wars, and numerous local clubs and
historical societies.

The estimated cost of the restoration of Old Number Four is $200,000. This
amount will buy the land, build the thirteen houses, erect the stockade, and
permit some operating capital for the first year or so. The first logs for the
stockade were donated by Dartmouth College, and set in place in July, 1958.
A great pageant, telling the story of Old Number Four, drew many people to
the site on August 15 and August 16, and awakened in them a new understand-
ing of the place and function of the old Fort in colonial and Revolutionary
history.

Many Vermonters have sensed the significance of this program x}f restoration.
Vrest Orton, Chairman of the Vermont Historic Sites Commission, has written
to the Associates as follows:
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The Commission feels, and we have emphasized this in our report to the
General Assembly of Vermont, that there is a new and significant point of view
toward the historic site mission in the states. It is this: Geography, we sy,
arteaces > people; History holds them. Good luck and all the success you so well

Prominent citizens of the Green Mountain State who live along the Con-
necticut River have served, and are now serving, as officers and directors of the
Old Number Four Associates.

Such places as Williamsburg, Shelburne, Old Sturbridge, and others show
clearly that restoracions of historic sites and areas can charm and inspire modern
Americans. It is believed thac the restoration of Old Number Four in exactly
its original form will have the same effect upon thousands of people, not only
in Vermont and New Hampshire but also among our visitors. Perhaps by the
time that we celebrate the bicentennial of the completion of the Crown Point
Road in 1960, the old Forr will be ready for inspection. From the same place
that Colonel Goffe and General Scark "took off” two hundred years ago, con-
temporary Americans may begin a trip across the scenic roads of Vermont.
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